COLLECTIVE BARGAINING AGREEMENT

BY AND BETWEEN

BOARD OF REGENTS OF THE UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON

AND THE

SCREEN ACTORS GUILD – ASSOCIATION FEDERATION OF TELEVISION RADIO

May 23, 2023 – January 31, 2026

(KUOW)

TABLE OF CONTENTS

MISSION STATEMENT AND PREAMBLE	4
ARTICLE 1 – UNION RECOGNITION	4
ARTICLE 2 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	4
ARTICLE 3 – NON-DISCRIMINATION AND DIVERSITY	5
ARTICLE 4 – PRAYER AND LACTATION ACCOMMODATIONS	6
ARTICLE 5 – FLEXIBLE WORK AGREEMENTS/ARRANGEMENTS	6
ARTICLE 6 – GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE	6
ARTICLE 7 – UNION SECURITY	10
ARTICLE 8 – WORK WEEK, WORK DAY, MEAL BREAKS, AND REST BREAKS	11
ARTICLE 9 – OVERTIME	12
ARTICLE 10 – REST BETWEEN SHIFTS	13
ARTICLE 11 – MINIMUM CALL	13
ARTICLE 12 – ON-CALL	13
ARTICLE 13 – DEFINITION OF FULL-TIME AND PART-TIME EMPLOYEE	13
ARTICLE 14 – TEMPORARY HOURLY FILL-IN EMPLOYEES AND PROJECT APPOINTMENTS	14
ARTICLE 15 – FELLOWSHIP	14
ARTICLE 16 – BONA FIDE INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS	15
ARTICLE 17 – PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT	15
ARTICLE 18 – SAFETY & HEALTH	16
ARTICLE 19 – BENEFITS	17
ARTICLE 20 – LEAVES AND TIME OFFS	18
ARTICLE 21 – HOLIDAYS	23
ARTICLE 22 – VACATION TIME OFF	25
ARTICLE 23 – MINIMUM TERMS AND CONDITIONS	25
ARTICLE 24 – SUBORDINATION OF AGREEMENT AND SAVINGS CLAUSE	25
ARTICLE 25 – SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS	26
ARTICLE 26 – NO STRIKE/LOCKOUT	26
ARTICLE 27 – NEWSROOM FIREWALL	26
ARTICLE 28 – CORRECTIVE ACTION/DISMISSAL	27
ARTICLE 29 – LENGTH OF SERVICE	28
ARTICLE 30 – LAYOFF	29
ARTICLE 31 – REHIRE RIGHTS	30

ARTICLE 32 – STATUS NOTIFICATION FORMS	31
ARTICLE 33 – POSTINGS	31
ARTICLE 34 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD	32
ARTICLE 35 – UNION REPRESENTATIVES AND STEWARDS	32
ARTICLE 36 – CELL PHONE POLICY	34
ARTICLE 37 – MEAL POLICY	35
ARTICLE 38 – BROADCAST HOST PREMIUM	35
ARTICLE 39 – COMPENSATION	35
ARTICLE 40 – DURATION	36
ARTICLE 41 – SICK TIME OFF	37
ARTICLE 42 – CLASSIFICATION AND RECLASSIFICATION	40
ARTICLE 43 – SALARY OVERPAYMENT RECOVERY	42
APPENDIX I – JOB CLASSIFICATIONS	44
MOU – SEATTLE LOCALITY PREMIUM	45
MOU – JOB CLASS SPECIFICATION REVIEW	46
MOU – LUMP SUM PAYMENT	47
SIDE LETTER A – U-PASS	48
SIGNATORIES	49

MISSION STATEMENT AND PREAMBLE

The purpose of this agreement is to set forth certain terms and conditions of employment and to promote orderly and peaceful labor relations between the parties. The parties agree it is to their mutual benefit to promote systematic and effective employee-management cooperation; fair and reasonable working conditions; effective methods for the prompt adjustment of differences, misunderstandings, and disputes; and dignified and fair treatment of employees in the implementation of all policies and procedures.

The parties recognize the special nature of KUOW as an independent, self-sustaining service of the University of Washington and as a distinguished institution in the Pacific Northwest. They also recognize the special, mission-driven nature of public media as distinguished from commercial media. The parties embrace KUOW's specific mission: to create and serve a more informed public, one challenged and invigorated by an understanding and appreciation of events, ideas and cultures. The parties also recognize that creating good wages, benefits, and working conditions is critical to attracting and retaining high-quality employees who can build sustainable careers serving the communities of Seattle and beyond.

ARTICLE 1 – UNION RECOGNITION

The Employer recognizes that SAG-AFTRA is the sole and exclusive collective bargaining representative for University of Washington regular full-time and regular part-time employees working at the Employer's radio station KUOW and employees working in remote bureaus of KUOW, who perform work that is exempt from civil service creating news and local programming, specifically, those University of Washington employees who produce, report, write, host or announce news for KUOW radio including web content, video, and podcasts.

ARTICLE 2 – MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

Except as expressly modified by a specific provision of this Agreement, he Employer reserves and retains exclusively to itself the rights in the exercise of the functions of management, including but not limited to the following rights: to manage, direct and operate the Employer's business, finances, and facilities; to hire employees and determine the size of the workforce; to direct and assign work to its employees; to determine the qualifications and responsibilities of employees; to develop and implement performance evaluation programs; to establish and/or change operational methods, technology, materials, equipment and facilities; to select employees for training and to train employees; to set and modify schedules and shifts, including the start time and end time for all shifts; to issue corrective action and to discharge employees for just cause; to lay off employees for lack of funds or work (except that, where the Employer decides to close down or relocate operations covered by this Agreement, the Employer agrees to inform the Union in advance of the decision and, upon request, bargain over the effects of

such decision); to establish new facilities and/ or change, relocate or close existing facilities; to discontinue operations in whole or in part; and to determine the scope and direction of the business.

In addition, the Employer retains its rights to determine all content and editorial matters that are not in conflict with the terms of this Agreement, including but not limited to determining what content to publish or air; determining what platforms to use for publication or dissemination of content; determining programming and programming standards; introducing new shows and modifying or ending shows; and determining coverage areas.

ARTICLE 3 – NON-DISCRIMINATION AND DIVERSITY

- 3.1 The parties individually agree that they will not engage in any act or practice or pursue any policy which is discriminatory against any employee because of race, religion, color, creed, age, sex, national origin, citizenship, marital status, disability, Veteran status, sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, genetic information, pregnancy, political affiliation, political belief, or membership status in a union. Unlawful harassment is included as a form of prohibited discrimination.
- 3.2 Complaints. Employees who feel they have been the subject of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation are encouraged, but not required, to discuss such issues with their supervisor, administrator, or Human Resource Consultant for local resolution. The goal of local resolution is to address and resolve problems as quickly as possible and to stop any inappropriate behavior for which a University employee is responsible. A formal complaint may be filed with the University Complaint Investigation and Resolution Office (UCIRO). Employees may also file discrimination, harassment or retaliation complaints with appropriate federal or state agencies or through the union grievance process in accordance with Article 6 of this Agreement. In cases where an employee files both a grievance and an internal complaint regarding the alleged discrimination, harassment or retaliation the union grievance will be suspended until the internal complaint process has been completed.

In accordance with Executive Order 31, retaliation against any individual who reports concerns regarding discrimination or harassment, or who cooperates with or participates in any investigation of allegations of discrimination, harassment, or retaliation is prohibited.

3.3 <u>Information.</u> In January of each year of this Agreement KUOW UW will provide SAG-AFTRA with (a) information showing the job classification, race and gender of all employees in the bargaining unit as of January 1 of that year; (b) information showing the job classification, race and gender of all new hires into the bargaining unit during the prior calendar year and (c) information showing the job classification, race and gender of

- employees promoted within the bargaining unit during the prior calendar year; and (d) W-2 gross earnings for work performed under this Agreement.
- 3.4 Racial Equity Committee. In furtherance of the mutual commitment expressed in this article the employer agrees to continue the Racial Equity Committee for the purpose of addressing an promoting the goal of a diverse workforce, commitments to promoting diversity through community interaction, programming and coverage of the stories and to discuss ideas and opportunities to further the parties mutual commitment to the principal of diversity. The Racial Equity Committee is currently comprised of SAG-AFTRA covered employees and other employee groups including managers of KUOW, managers of UW employees, who meet regularly. The need for the Committee, associated strategy and participants will be revisited on an annual basis.

ARTICLE 4 – PRAYER AND LACTATION ACCOMMODATIONS

The Employer shall provide a wellness room, consistent with current practice and applicable law, that can be exclusively scheduled for lactating mothers (Administrative Policy Statement 46.7) and religious and spiritual practice. Parties agree that if any issues arise, then the labor management committee shall be convened as soon as practicable.

ARTICLE 5 – FLEXIBLE WORK AGREEMENTS/ARRANGEMENTS

KUOW shall make reasonable efforts to grant employees' request for alternative work arrangements.

ARTICLE 6 – GRIEVANCE AND ARBITRATION PROCEDURE

The Union and the Employer agree that it is in their best interest to resolve disputes at the earliest opportunity and at the lowest level. Whenever possible, disputes should be resolved informally prior to filing a formal written grievance. To that end, all supervisors and employees are encouraged to engage in free and open discussions about disputes.

- 6.1 <u>Definition</u>. A grievance, within the meaning of this Agreement, shall be defined as any dispute between the University and the Union, an employee, or a group of employees as to alleged misapplication or misinterpretation of the terms of this Agreement or the Employer's written personnel rules, policies or practices.
- 6.2 <u>Employee Grievance Rights.</u> Any employee who believes they have been aggrieved may personally seek relief from that condition by filing a grievance, irrespective of any supervisor's opinion of the grievance's validity. In the presentation of grievances, the employees shall be safe from restraint, interference, discrimination, or reprisal.

- 6.3 <u>Employee Representation.</u> The Union as exclusive representative of bargaining unit employees is the responsible representative of said employees in grievance matters.
- 6.4 <u>Time Limitations</u>. An extension of the time limitations as stipulated in the respective steps below, may be obtained by mutual consent of the parties. Failure of the union to comply with the time limitations without a request of time extension shall constitute withdrawal of the grievance. Failure of the Employer to comply with the time limitations without a request for time extension shall move the grievance to the next step of the grievance procedure. For the purpose of calculating time requirements, the first day shall be the day following the day on which the employee was aware, or reasonably should have been aware, of the issue giving rise to the grievance. Saturdays, Sundays, and University holidays shall be included in the calculation of days except that the final day may not be on a Saturday, Sunday, or holiday but will end at the close of the first working day following the Saturday, Sunday, or holiday.
- 6.5 <u>Contents.</u> The written grievance shall include the following information:
 - A. The date upon which the grievance occurred.
 - B. The specific Article(s) and Section(s) of the Agreement violated.
 - C. The past practice, rule, policy violated.
 - D. Specific remedy requested.
 - E. The grievant(s) name.
 - F. Name and signature of Union representative (Staff or Steward).
 - G. The nature of the grievance.

Failure to include the above information shall not be a reason for invalidating the grievance.

- 6.6 Pay Status Meetings. Meetings and discussions on the grievance held with the Employer in connection with this grievance procedure shall normally be held during regular business hours, or as mutually agreeable, and no deduction in pay status shall be made for the grievant or steward for reasonable time spent in such meetings or discussions during the employee's scheduled duty hours. The work schedule of the grievant will be seriously considered in the scheduling of the grievance meetings. Time off for employees and stewards shall be granted by supervision following a request, but in consideration of job responsibilities. If the requested time off cannot be granted, the parties shall arrange for time off at the earliest possible time thereafter.
- 6.7 <u>Grievance Withdrawal</u>. A grievance may be withdrawn by the Union in writing at any time, and if withdrawn shall not be resubmitted.
- 6.8 <u>Resolution</u>. If the Employer provides the requested remedy or a mutually agreed-upon alternative, the grievance will be considered resolved and may not be moved to the next step.

6.9 <u>Consolidation</u>. Grievances arising out of the same set of facts may be consolidated by written agreement.

6.10 Filing and Processing

- A. <u>Filing</u>. A grievance must be filed within thirty (30) days of the occurrence giving rise to the grievance, or the date the grievant knew or could reasonably have known of the occurrence. When possible the thirty (30) day periods above should be used to attempt to informally resolve the dispute. The union steward or staff representative will indicate when a discussion with the Employer is an attempt to informally resolve a dispute.
- B. <u>Alternative Resolution Methods</u>. Any time during the grievance process, by mutual consent, the parties may use alternative methods to resolve the dispute. If the parties agree to use alternative methods, the time frames in this Article are suspended. If the selected alternative method does not result in a resolution, the Union may return to the grievance process and the time frames resume. Any expenses and fees of alternative methods will be shared equally by the parties.
- C. <u>Processing</u>. The Union and the Employer agree that in-person meetings are preferred at all steps of the grievance process and will make efforts to schedule in-person meetings, if possible.
- 6.11 <u>Steps of the Grievance Procedure.</u> All grievances shall be processed in accordance with the following procedure. Upon mutual agreement, Step One, Two or Three may be skipped. Grievances over final counseling or dismissal will begin at Step Two.

Step One: Supervisor, Manager or Designee. If the issue is not resolved informally, the Union may file a written grievance to the supervisor or designee, the Human Resources Consultant, and the Labor Relations office (laborrel@uw.edu). The Employer will designate a supervisor, manager or designee who will meet in person or confer by telephone with a union steward and/or staff representative and the grievant. The date of the meeting will be mutually agreed upon within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of the grievance and when possible the meeting will take place within the aforementioned fifteen (15) calendar days. The format (face to face or by telephone) for the meeting will be by mutual agreement. The employer will respond in writing to the Union within fifteen (15) calendar days after the meeting. The Human Resources Consultant may also attend, if desired by the University. If the grievance is directed against the employee's immediate supervisor, the grievance may be presented to the next higher level of supervision. In the event the employee's immediate supervisor does not have authority to resolve the grievance, the grievance will be presented at the level having authority to act as determined by the Employer.

<u>Step Two:</u> If a satisfactory settlement is not reached in Step One, said grievance may be moved to the Step Two by filing the written grievance, including a copy of the Step One

decision to department head, designee, or to the next appropriate level of management and the Office of Labor Relations within fifteen (15) calendar days after the decision from Step One. The date of the meeting will be mutually agreed upon within fifteen (15) calendar days after notice of the filing at Step Two and when possible the meeting will take place within the aforementioned fifteen (15) calendar days. The grievant may be represented by a steward and a Union staff representative. The University will be represented by the appropriate management official(s) or designee(s), a representative from the Office of Labor Relations, and a Human Resources Consultant, if desired by the University. The University will respond in writing within thirty (30) calendar days after the meeting.

Step Three: Grievance Mediation. If the grievance is not resolved at the Step Two, the Union may file a request for mediation with the Public Employment Relations Commission (PERC) in accordance with WAC 391-55-020, with a copy to the Labor Relations Office within thirty (30) days of receipt of the Step Two decision. In addition to all other filing requirements, the request must include a copy of the grievance and all previous responses. The Employer will inform the Union, in writing, and PERC within thirty (30) days of receipt of Mediation request if they are not in agreement. If those services are unavailable on a timely basis, the parties may request a list of grievance mediators from the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service (FMCS) or other agreed upon mediation provider. The cost of the mediation shall be borne equally by both parties.

Step Four: Arbitration. If a satisfactory settlement is not reached at the prior step, or the step was skipped, either of the signatory parties to this Agreement may submit the grievance to binding arbitration. Such submittal must be made within thirty (30) calendar days following the written notice that the employer does not agree to Step Three (3) Mediation or the conclusion of the prior step. The Employer and the Union shall attempt to agree upon a mutually satisfactory arbitrator. If the parties are unable to agree on a mutually satisfactory arbitrator within ten(10) calendar days after written request to arbitrate, either party may request the Federal Mediation and Conciliation Services (FMCS) To submit a panel of seven (7) names from which the arbitrator shall be chosen by each party alternately striking names.

<u>Authority of the Arbitrator.</u> The parties agree that the arbitrator shall have no power to render a decision that adds to, subtracts from, alters or modifies in any way the terms and conditions of the

Agreement. The parties further agree that the decision of the arbitrator will be final and binding upon all parties.

The Union or the Employer will have the right to request the arbitrator to require the presence of witnesses and/or documents. The arbitrator's decision shall be made in writing and the arbitrator shall be encouraged to render the decision within thirty (30) calendar days of the close of the arbitration.

In cases where a grievance is moved to arbitration and the Employer did not agree to Step Three: Grievance Mediation, either party may request a pre-arbitration settlement conference. These conferences shall not delay the arbitration process, and may be held with or without the presence of the arbitrator, at the option of the moving party. In the event that an arbitrator is present, the cost of the arbitrator's participation shall be borne equally by the parties.

6.12 <u>Arbitration Costs</u>

- A. The fees and costs of the arbitrator, and the cost (if any) of the hearing room, will be shared equally by the parties.
- B. If the arbitration hearing is postponed or canceled because of one party, that party will bear the cost of the postponement or cancellation. The costs of any mutually agreed upon postponements or cancellations will be shared equally by the parties.
- C. If either party desires a record of the arbitration, a court reporter may be used. If that party purchases a transcript, a copy will be provided to the arbitrator free of charge. If the other party desires a copy of the transcript, it will pay for half of the costs of the fee for the court reporter, the original transcript and a copy.
- D. Each party is responsible for all fees and costs of its staff representatives, attorneys, experts, witnesses —and all other costs related to the development and presentation of their case. Every effort will be made to avoid the presentation of repetitive witnesses.
- 6.13 <u>Files.</u> Grievance documents shall be maintained separately from employee personnel files. Employee personnel files will accurately reflect the final outcome of a grievance.

ARTICLE 7 – UNION SECURITY

- 7.1 <u>Dues Deduction.</u> Upon written authorization by an individual employee to the Union, the Employer shall provide for the semi-monthly payroll deductions of union dues which are uniformly applied to all members in those bargaining units in which the Union is the exclusive bargaining agent.
- 7.2 <u>Check-Off:</u> The Employer agrees to honor from each employee a voluntary, revocable written wage assignment authorizing the Employer, during the life of this Agreement or until revoked or modified by the employee, to deduct semi monthly from the wages then owing the employee;
 - A. Stipulated amounts for initiation requirements until the total is paid, and\or
 - B. An amount to satisfy dues

All amounts deducted shall be remitted in the normal course of business by the employer to the Executive Director of the Union and said Executive Director shall

acknowledge receipt of the money, in writing. the Union agrees to defend, indemnify and hold harmless the Employer from any action or actions, claims, demands, suits, or other forms of liability that may arise against the Employer out of the operation of this Union Security article including, without limitation these deductions, which action is commenced by any employee against the Employer, and the Union assumes full responsibility for the disposition of the funds so deducted once they have been turned over to the Executive Director of the Union as above provided. Errors made by the Employer in the deduction or the retaining of money under this provision of the Agreement shall not be considered to be a violation of this provision, but errors will be corrected promptly when ascertained. If an employee contacts the Employer to request that payroll deduction be ended, the Employer will promptly refer the employee to the Union to process the request.

The authorized wage assignment shall be in the following form: See attached exhibit A.

- 7.3 <u>Revocation</u>. An employee wishing to cancel their authorization for payroll deductions shall contact the Union. The Union shall promptly notify the Employer of any such valid revocation.. Every effort will be made to end the deduction effective on the first payroll, and not later than the second payroll, after receipt by the Employer of confirmation from the Union that the revocation is valid.
- 7.4 During the life of this agreement, the Employer may develop a web-based electronic dues deduction reporting system. The Union may provide input to the Employer regarding its development. Prior to implementing the system, the Employer will provide the Union with notice and opportunity to bargain.

ARTICLE 8 – WORK WEEK, WORK DAY, MEAL BREAKS, AND REST BREAKS

- 8.1 <u>Work week.</u> The workweek for purposes of payroll and scheduling shall be Monday through Sunday.
- 8.2 <u>Work day.</u> The normal work day for full-time employees shall be eight (8) consecutive hours, exclusive of any assigned meal period/rest breaks taken on employee's time. No split shifts shall be assigned.
- 8.3 <u>Meal breaks.</u> Meal breaks shall be a minimum of thirty (30) minutes, unpaid and on the employee's own time, provided the employee is off-duty for that meal period. It is the Employer's intention to provide uninterrupted meal breaks.

The meal period shall commence not earlier than the second hour of the shift nor later than the fifth hour of the shift. If the employee is required to work beyond the fifth hour without a break, the employee will be allowed to eat their meal at the duty station on the Employer's time.

8.4 <u>Rest breaks.</u> Employees shall receive a fifteen (15) minute break during each four (4) hours worked. It is the Employer's intention to provide uninterrupted rest breaks.

ARTICLE 9 – OVERTIME

9.1 Overtime

- A. Any one of the following constitutes overtime for overtime-eligible employees:
 - 1. Work in excess of the daily work shift over eight (8) hours for full-time employees;
 - 2. Work in excess of forty (40) hours in one (1) work week.
 - 3. Short Turnaround (See Rest Between Shifts)
- B. Overtime worked by the eligible employees shall be compensated at a rate of one and one-half (1-1/2) times the employee's straight time hourly rate.
- C. Overtime-eligible employees shall receive monetary payment as compensation for overtime worked; however, at the employee's request, compensatory time off at one and one-half (1-1/2) times the overtime hours worked may be granted in lieu of monetary payment.
- D. Compensation paid to an employee for accrued compensatory time shall be paid at the regular rate earned by the employee at the time the employee receives such payment. Upon termination of employment, an employee will be paid for any unused compensatory time in accordance with the Fair Labor Standards Act.
- E. Use of accrued compensatory time shall be approved by the employee's supervisor with consideration being given to the work requirements of the department and the wishes of the employee.
- F. Compensatory time must be used or paid for by June 30th of each fiscal year. The employee's unused compensatory time balance will be cashed out every June 30th or when the employee leaves University employment for any reason. The employee's compensatory time balance may also be cashed out when the employee transfers to a position in another department.
- G. For purposes of computing overtime compensation, holidays or use of paid time-off during the employee's regular work schedule shall be considered as time worked.

9.2 Overtime Policies

- A. The parties have a mutual interest in promoting work/life balance, while maintaining high quality journalistic work. In support of this, The Employer will make a good faith effort to reduce the need for overtime, whenever possible.
- B. An employee should initiate discussions with their supervisor as soon as they anticipate any workload-related issues. Supervisors will work with employees to

- provide support by assisting in setting priorities and adjusting workload, when possible.
- C. Overtime work must be pre-approved by a supervisor.
- D. A record of overtime hours worked by each employee shall be kept in Workday, and such record of overtime may be reviewed, upon request, by the Union.
- E. Overtime needs and workload expectations may also be an appropriate agenda item for Joint Union Management committee meetings.
- 9.3 Overtime Exempt Positions. Overtime-exempt employees are not covered by federal or state overtime laws and do not receive overtime compensation or compensatory time off. Employees are encouraged to consult with their supervisors regarding possible temporary adjustments of work hours to accommodate the appropriate balance between extended work time and offsetting time, whenever possible.

ARTICLE 10 - REST BETWEEN SHIFTS

The assigned work shift of any bargaining unit employee on any day shall begin not sooner than twelve (12) hours after the conclusion of their last work shift of **a prior day**. If an employee has less than twelve (12) hours' time off between continuous assigned work shifts, the work time falling within the twelve (12) hour period shall trigger Overtime as set forth herein.

ARTICLE 11 – MINIMUM CALL

KUOW shall assign employees work shifts paid no less than four (4) hours.

ARTICLE 12 – ON-CALL

The Station may assign covered employees to be on-call. When assigned to be on call, the employee shall remain available to respond promptly and able to report to work within one (1) hour of receiving instruction to do so.

Scheduled on-call shifts shall be compensated at the rate of fifty dollars (\$50) per day. The fifty dollars (\$50) is the rate of pay to the employee who is not called in. Fifty dollars (\$50) plus the employee's regular hourly rate for the amount of time spent working (including a minimum call of four hours) is the rate of pay for an employee who is called in to work.

ARTICLE 13 – DEFINITION OF FULL-TIME AND PART-TIME EMPLOYEE

13.1 Full-time Employee. A regular staff employee scheduled to work five days a week, forty (40) hours per work week.

- 13.2 Part-time Employee. An employee regularly scheduled to work less than forty (40) hours per week in a work week.
 - A. Part-time employees shall receive all benefits of employment on a pro rata basis, except health benefits determined by the state. If local ordinances provide for benefits more generous than comparable state entitlements, the former shall apply.

ARTICLE 14 – TEMPORARY HOURLY FILL-IN EMPLOYEES AND PROJECT APPOINTMENTS

Temporary hourly fill-in employees may be retained to fill in for regular or part-time bargaining unit employees, backfilling while a recruitment is in process or to fill in when a bargaining unit employee is absent for reasons such as leave of absence, illness, parental; such fill-in employee's tenure is not to exceed six (6) calendar months. Such temporary hourly fill-in employees shall not displace bargaining unit work and/or positions, other than as specified herein. Open positions are absolutely limited to a six months tenure and no exceptions shall apply; a temp who is later hired in the same open position shall be credited for their time serving as an hourly fill-in employee, and will not be required to restart the six months probationary period.

A waiver from SAG-AFTRA may be sought for a longer time period; such will not be unreasonably withheld. The usage of temporary hourly fill-in employees may also be an appropriate agenda item for Joint Union Management committee meetings. The Employer shall provide the Union with the name of temporary hourly fill-in hires, expected length of hire, and the reason for the hire, within ten (10) business days of their hire.

Project appointments for a limited term may be made for assignments initially intended to be up to twelve (12) months in duration. The filling of project appointments will be determined by the University. The Employer shall provide the Union with the name of project appointment(s) within ten (10) business days of their hire. The usage of project appointments may also be an appropriate agenda item for Joint Union Management committee meetings.

ARTICLE 15 – FELLOWSHIP

Based on current budget and strategic priorities, the Employer will work to maintain a recurring, fellowship. The fellow will report to a supervising editor in the newsroom.

The Fellows may only perform covered work in addition to work and hours performed by bargaining unit employees and not in lieu of such hours and work. The Fellow may not be used to cover for any long-term absence, illness, or time off. The fellowship may not last for longer than twelve (12) months. The Employer shall provide the Union with the name of new fellow(s) within ten (10) business days of their hire.

ARTICLE 16 – BONA FIDE INDEPENDENT CONTRACTORS

Bona-fide Independent Contractors are excluded from the bargaining unit and the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall not apply. Independent contractors are not intended to displace bargaining unit positions. When possible, the Employer shall provide the Union of notice of at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the start of work of any independent contractor. When notice cannot be provided at least thirty (30) calendar days prior to the start of work, the Employer shall provide notice no later than fifteen (15) calendar days after the start of work. Contracting may also be an appropriate agenda item for Joint Union Management Committee meetings.

ARTICLE 17 - PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

17.1 <u>KUOW</u> will establish opportunities that align with the goals and strategic priorities of KUOW for Employee professional development, including conferences, lectures, and workshops. Funding for these training opportunities will be budgeted on an annual basis based on current budget priorities.

KUOW agrees to form a Professional Development and Training Committee for the purpose of discussing, reviewing, and submitting recommendations for allocation of funds for professional development opportunities.

The Professional Development and Training Committee shall be comprised of SAG-AFTRA-covered employees, including managers of KUOW.

The Professional Development and Training Committee will meet prior to the fiscal year and mid-fiscal year, to discuss ideas and opportunities to further train and develop employees and give equitable and reasonable consideration to Employee requests to participate in work-related professional development opportunities. Bargaining unit employees may submit requests to participate in work-related professional development opportunities semi-annually of each year. KUOW shall review the requests and respond within 14 days.

- 17.2 Bargaining unit employees shall continue to be given paid time away from their regular schedule to participate in approved work-related training or professional development opportunities.
- 17.3 Bargaining unit employees may seek outside funding or scholarships to cover the costs of attending conferences or other professional development opportunities and to alleviate the need to use budgeted funds. If the expenses related to attending the conference or other professional development opportunities are fully funded by outside funding or by scholarship, KUOW will make every effort to allow the Employee to participate in the training or conference.

ARTICLE 18 – SAFETY & HEALTH

The Employer and the Union share a mutual commitment to ensuring a healthy work environment and the safety and security of employees covered by this Agreement, consistent with and in compliance with applicable state and federal laws. Employees will play an active role in creating a safe and healthy work environment and will comply with all applicable health and safety rules.

- 18.1 Security at Employer Facilities. Employer agrees to provide sufficient security for its employees at all UW facilities, including bureaus.
- 18.2 Security in the Field. The Employer agrees to provide sufficient safety and security measures, including appropriate training, for employees working in the field on assignment. An employee in the field may exercise their professional judgment as to matters of safety and security, including but not limited to the right to refuse an assignment or the right to decide not to complete an assignment.
- 18.3 Ergonomics. Employer will provide employees workspace and equipment necessary to perform their duties while minimizing the possibility of injury or discomfort.
- 18.4 Maintenance of Facilities. Maintenance of UW facilities is the Employer's responsibility.
- 18.5 First Aid. Employer shall provide adequate first aid supplies at each of its facilities.
- 18.6 Wellness. The Employer and the Union will encourage and support employee participation in appropriate programs through which employees may seek confidential assistance in the resolution of chemical dependency or other problems that may affect job performance.
- 18.7 Hearing Tests. On an annual basis, upon request by an employee, UW shall make available a hearing test by a certified audiologist at no cost to those employees who, in connection with work, regularly use earphones or earbuds. Individual results shall be shared with each employee and aggregate data be shared with SAG-AFTRA in a timely manner.
- 18.8 Vocal Cords. On an annual basis, upon request by an employee, UW shall make available testing of vocal cords at no cost for on-air Employees including but not limited to Hosts, Newscasters, and Reporters.

- 18.9 The parties recognize the trauma that journalists may experience in the course of their work. As such, the Employer is committed to continuing to work with employees to reduce the exposure to and effects of such trauma.
- 18.10 Parking/U-Pass. The Union agrees that during the life of this Agreement, the University may apply changes in transportation policy, including adjusting parking and U-Pass fees and criteria for assigning parking spots, to the bargaining unit without obligation to bargain with the Union. The Union may raise issues and concerns about the University's parking program at Joint Labor Committee meetings. The Union shall have a standing seat on the University's committee(s) that work on transportation and parking issues.
- 18.11 The Employer agrees to advocate for and explore the safest possible parking conditions for employees who work in the early mornings. Employees shall be responsible for monthly parking payments at the University of Washington. The Employer recognizes safety concerns regarding employees working early mornings and parking spaces near KUOW may not be available. The employer has secured two parking passes to a secure garage for the affected employees to access parking in off-hours. The two passes are at the discretion of the UW Transportation services department and may be terminated at any time. In the event that the two parking passes are no longer available, the Employer and the Union will meet within 30 days to discuss safe alternatives. This section shall not be subject to the grievance procedure and this clause will need to be reviewed annually.

ARTICLE 19 – BENEFITS

Employer agrees to provide any and all benefits and under the same terms and conditions as non-bargaining unit employees, including but not limited to those listed below. The list is not intended to serve as an exhaustive list and shall not be construed as a waiver of any benefits, including improvements or enhancements of such benefits that shall inure to the benefit of each eligible bargaining unit employee during the Term of the Agreement.

- A. Health Care Benefits including the contributions and medical premiums set by the Public Employees Benefits Board (PEBB) for such benefits; they also include long-term disability and dental insurance coverage and vision (if stand-alone vision insurance coverage is authorized by PEB, then such coverage shall also apply to bargaining unit employees; and
- B. Health Savings Account participation, Flexible Savings Account participation; and
- C. Retirement Plan; and
- D. Tuition Exemption Program; and
- E. Professional Leave (Article 20); and
- F. Life Insurance, including Optional life.

Please see comprehensive UW benefits information from Total Benefits at https://hr.uw.edu/benefits/.

See the following link for more information about the benefits available to State Employees through the PEBB program, administered by the Washington State Healthcare Authority: https://www.hca.wa.gov/employee-retiree-benefits/public-employees

ARTICLE 20 – LEAVES AND TIME OFFS

Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, Employees covered by this Agreement shall be covered by the Employer's and Station's various leave and time off policies—both paid and unpaid, including but not limited to:

Leaves of Absence, Statutory & Policy:

- A. Military leave (APS 45.4)
- B. Leave for spouses of deployed military personnel (RCW 49.77)
- C. FMLA (APS 45.5)
- D. PFML (RCW 50A, APS 45.6)
- E. Leave for Domestic Violence, sexual assault, stalking (APS 46.8), (RCW 49.76)
- F. Family care leave (RCW 49.12)
- G. Family care emergency (RCW 49.12.270)
- H. Shared leave (APS 45.10)
- I. Time off for reasons of faith or conscience (RCW 1.16.050)
- J. Annual Attendance incentive program (RCW 41.04.340)
- K. Leave for certain emergency services personnel (RCW 49.12.460)
- L. Organ donor shared leave (APS 45.9)
- M. Compensable work-related injury or illness (APS 14.1)
- 20.1 <u>Bereavement Time Off.</u> An employee shall be granted up to three (3) continuous or non-continuous days of bereavement time off, as requested by the employee, for each death of a family member, including the miscarriage or stillbirth of your child. Bereavement time off beyond three (3) days may be approved based on individual circumstances, such as relationship of the employee to the deceased family member, employee responsibility for making funeral arrangements, religious reasons and/or distance of travel out of the area. Upon the Employer's approval, the employee may choose to use the following types of time off for beyond the three (3) days: sick, vacation, holiday credit, compensatory time, personal holiday, or unpaid time off.

Family members includes biological, adoptive, de facto, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an employee, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child; sibling, spouse, domestic partner, grandparent, grandchild, or child, regardless of age or dependency status, including a biological, adopted or foster child, stepchild, or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis, is a legal guardian, or is a de facto parent. Family members include those persons in a "step" relationship. Family member also includes individuals in the following relationships with

the employee's spouse or domestic partner: child, parent (as defined above), or grandparent.

- 20.2 <u>Civil Duty Time Off.</u> Time off with pay will be granted for jury duty, to serve as trial witnesses, or to exercise other subpoenaed civil duties such as testifying at depositions. Employees are not entitled to civil time off for civil legal actions that they initiate or when named as a defendant in a private legal action that is unrelated to their University employment. The employee will notify the Employer as soon as they become aware of the need for civil duty time off.
- 20.3 <u>Discretionary Time Off.</u> Employees may be eligible to receive discretionary time off, up to six days (48 hours for full-time employment) per calendar year, as determined by the Employer. Discretionary time off must be used by March 31 of the calendar year following the calendar year in which it was awarded.
- 20.4 Parental Leave. Parental leave is defined as: up to six months of leave taken after the birth of a child to the employee, spouse or domestic partner, or because of the placement of a child with the employee or domestic partner through adoption or foster care, including time covered by FMLA, during the first year after the child's birth or placement. Leave beyond the period covered by FMLA may only be denied by the Employer due to operational necessity. Extensions beyond six (6) months may be approved by the Employer. For birth parents, temporary disability leave for pregnancy is in addition to parental leave.

To be paid during Parental leave the employee must use accrued vacation time off, sick time off up to eighteen (18) weeks (720 hours), personal holiday, holiday credit, or compensatory time, the combination of which may be determined by the employee. Employees must use all applicable accrued time off prior to going on leave without pay.

20.5 <u>Professional Leave with Pay.</u>

A. Eligibility: Employees are eligible to apply for a professional leave not earlier than their seventh year of service in their SAG-AFTRA covered positions, or not earlier than in the seventh year after return from a previous UW professional leave with pay.

Evaluation of a professional leave with pay request takes into consideration how fulfillment of the plan is anticipated to enhance the value of the individual's service to the university and both the employing unit's and the employee's ability to fulfill the plan as described.

B. Request Process: Complete the <u>Professional Leave with Pay Application</u> at least six months before the date the requested leave is to begin. The request must be approved by the employee's supervisor, the employing unit's dean or vice president,

and by the HR Operations Office that serves the unit. After approval, employees whose leave is managed in Workday will request a LOA Professional Leave in Workday.

- C. Length of leave: Professional leave with pay may be granted for any period of time up to a maximum of nine months.
- D. Compensation: The University will provide salary support for the period of the leave as follows:
 - a. Full salary for a leave not exceeding three months;
 - b. Three-fourths salary for a leave greater than three months up to six months;
 - c. Two-thirds salary for a leave exceeding six months to nine months.

If the applicant secures grant support that is designated for salary, the funds can be applied to bring the employee's pay up to full salary during the leave. Any grant funds in excess of those necessary to achieve full salary payment, are used to reduce the University's contribution from other fund sources.

Except in unusual circumstances, the combined compensation for an individual on professional leave may not exceed the individual's regular salary. If the leave will be spent in a particularly high cost-of-living area, or where the work to be performed requires extraordinary expense, the HR Operations Office serving the unit may approve a combined salary that exceeds the employee's regular salary.

E. Other employment: An employee on professional leave with pay may not accept paid employment during the period of the leave except where the purpose of the leave is for professional practice or experience that cannot be obtained otherwise.

Supplemental employment should not carry with it responsibilities that interfere with the purpose for which the leave is granted. Salary from other employment while on professional leave will be applied in the same manner as grant support.

Agreement to return: In order to be granted professional leave the employee must agree in writing to return to their University position for a period equivalent to the length of the leave. Pursuant to RCW 28B.10.650, if the employee does not comply with this agreement, the employee is obligated to repay all remuneration received from the UW during the period of the leave.

F. Report of leave: Within one month of returning to work at the University, the employee must submit to the appropriate dean or vice president a summary of the activities in which the employee was engaged while on leave. The summary must

provide details explaining the leave's value to the University and to the employee's professional development.

20.6 Unpaid Time Off.

- A. In addition to the circumstances specified elsewhere in this Agreement, the Employer, in its discretion may approve unpaid time off for the following reasons specified below. Unpaid time off must be approved or denied by the Employer in writing within fourteen (14) calendar days of the request when practicable and if denied will include the reason for denial. Approval will set a date for the employee's return to work. Modification of the return date must also be approved in writing by the Employer.
- B. Unpaid time off may be granted for the following reasons:
 - 1. Child or elder care emergencies
 - 2. Governmental service
 - 3. Citizen volunteer or community service
 - 4. Conditions applicable for unpaid time off
 - 5. Education
 - 6. Formal collective bargaining
 - 7. Leave taken voluntarily to reduce the effect of a layoff
 - 8. Union project activities
 - 9. To accommodate annual work schedules of employees occupying cyclic year positions
 - 10. As otherwise provided for in this Agreement
- C. Unpaid time off for the following reasons is not covered by this Article:
 - 1. Military service
 - 2. Leave for serious health condition taken under the provisions of the Family and Medical Leave article
 - 3. Leave authorized by the Employer as part of a plan to reasonably accommodate a person of disability
 - 4. Disability due to pregnancy or childbirth
 - 5. Parental leave
 - 6. Union activities (Article 35)
- D. Conditions Applicable to unpaid time off:

Employees must submit any request for unpaid time off in writing when feasible prior to the time off being used. Except as required by law, a request for unpaid time off must meet the following conditions:

- 1. The employee must be a permanent employee
- 2. The employee must have a bona fide intention of returning to work following the time off

- 3. The time off must not, in the discretion of the University, interfere with operational needs.
- E. <u>Cancellation of Unpaid Time Off.</u> The Employer may cancel unpaid time off upon finding that the employee is using the time off for purposes other than those specified at the time of approval, or where there are extreme circumstances requiring the employee's return to work. The Employer will provide written notice to the employee that unpaid time off has been cancelled. The notice will set a date for the employee's return to work. Unless mutually agreed, the employee's failure to return to work on the date prescribed will be considered job abandonment.
- F. <u>Benefits During Unpaid Time Off.</u> Employees are encouraged to contact the Employer's Benefits Office (phone # 206-543-2800, benefits@uw.edu) prior to any unpaid time off to understand impact on benefits and learn about other points to consider.
- G. Returning Employee Rights. Employees returning to work following approved unpaid time off will be returned to the position they held prior to the unpaid time off or to another position in the same classification in the same geographical area unit and organizational unit. In the event the employee's position is substantially impacted during the time the employee is on unpaid time off, the employee will be notified in writing and provided a time in which to exercise any rights available pursuant to this Agreement.
- H. <u>Educational Leave</u>. After applicable accrued time off has been exhausted, unpaid time off may be granted for the duration of actual attendance in an educational program.
- I. <u>Government Service Leave</u>. After applicable accrued time off has been exhausted, unpaid time off may be granted for government service in the public interest, including but not limited to the U.S. Public Health Service or Peace Corps.
- J. <u>Volunteer or Community Service Leave</u>. After applicable accrued time off has been exhausted, unpaid time off may be granted for community volunteerism or service.
- K. <u>Formal Collective Bargaining Leave</u>. Unpaid time off may be granted to participate in formal collective bargaining sessions authorized by RCW 41.80 as mutually agreed by the parties.
- 20.7 If the Employer implements a new category of time off or modifies policy regarding use of an existing type of time off for professional staff at KUOW, that is more generous than

the terms within this agreement, the Employer will provide the Union with information regarding the change. The Union may request to meet and discuss.

ARTICLE 21 – HOLIDAYS

21.1 Holidays

The present holiday schedule includes the following eleventh (11) days with pay.

New Year's Day Independence Day

Martin Luther King Jr. Day

(Third Monday of January)

President's Day

Labor Day

Veteran's Day

Thanksgiving Day

(Third Monday of February) Native American Heritage Day

Memorial Day Christmas Day

Juneteenth (June 19th)

Holidays are prorated for part-time employees.

To be paid for a holiday not worked Employees must be in pay status for at least four (4) hours on the last scheduled work shift preceding the holiday.

At the employee's request, the Employer may designate other days or shifts to be observed in lieu of the above holidays.

21.2 Holiday Pay Rules

The following applies to the holidays listed in this Article

Full Time Employee:

- A. When the holiday falls on the full time employee's regularly scheduled work day and is worked, the employee will be paid holiday premium pay (one and one half) for all hours worked. The employee will also receive eight (8) hours of holiday credit.
- B. When the holiday falls on the full time employee's regularly scheduled work day and is not worked, the employee will be paid eight (8) hours at the employee's regular rate of pay. If the employees shift is more than eight (8) hours, the employee will be allowed to use compensatory time, holiday credit, vacation time off, or unpaid time off to complete the regularly scheduled work hours for the day, or by a mutually agreed upon temporary modified weekly schedule.
- C. When the holiday falls on the employee's regularly scheduled day off, the employee will receive eight (8) hours of holiday credit.

Part Time Employee:

- D. When the holiday falls on the part time employee's regularly scheduled work day and is worked, the employee will be paid holiday premium pay (one and one half) for all hours worked. The employee will also receive the prorated to full time number of hours of holiday credit.
- E. When the holiday falls on the part time employee's regularly scheduled work day and is not worked, the employee will be paid the prorated to full time number of hours at the employee's regular rate of pay.

Holiday Credit

- A. Holiday credit will be used and scheduled by the employee in the same manner as vacation time off in Article 22. Holiday credit must be used before vacation time off unless doing so would cause the employee to exceed the two hundred forty (240) hour vacation leave accrual limit.
- B. Holiday Credit Cash Out. All holiday credit must be used by June 30th of each year. The employee's holiday credit balance will be cashed out every June 30th or when the employee leaves University employment for any reason. The employee's holiday credit balance may be cashed out when the employee:
 - 1. Transfers to a position in their department with different funding sources or,
 - 2. Transfers to a position in another department.

21.3 Personal Holiday

- A. Each employee may select one personal holiday each calendar year in accordance with the following:
 - 1. The employee has been continuously employed by the University for more than four (4) months;
 - 2. The employee has requested and been approved to take the personal holiday in accordance with Article 22 Vacation Time Off.
- B. It is the employee's responsibility to schedule the Personal Holiday before December 31st. If not requested it is forfeited.
- C. Entitlement to the holiday will not lapse when it is cancelled by the Employer and cannot be rescheduled before December 31st.
- D. Full-time employees shall receive eight (8) hours of regular pay for the personal holiday.

Part-time employees shall be entitled to a pro-rated number of paid hours on a Personal Holiday based on their FTE.

ARTICLE 22 – VACATION TIME OFF

22.1 Consistent with station policy, every bargaining unit Employee shall be entitled to vacation time off in the same manner as non-bargaining unit employees. Management shall make every effort to approve time off requests within two weeks of the date the request is submitted in Workday.

22.2 Accrual

Employees will accrue vacation time off during the new hire probationary period. The current accrual schedule for full-time employees (prorated for part-time), to be credited monthly, is as follows:

Length of Service		Vacation Time Off Accrual Rate	
Years	Month	Hours per mo.	Days or Hours per
			yr.
1 st year	0-12	10.00	15/120
2 nd year	13-24	10.67	16/128
3 rd year	25-36	11.34	17/136
4 th year	37-48	12.00	18/144
5 th year	49-60	12.67	19/152
6 th year	61-72	13.34	20/160
7 th year	73-84	14.00	21/168
8 th year	85-96	14.67	22/176

9th year	97-108	16.00	24/192
10 th year	109-120	16.67	25/200
11th year & above	121 & above	17.34	26/208

ARTICLE 23 – MINIMUM TERMS AND CONDITIONS

This Agreement contains the minimum terms and condition of employment. The Employer shall not enter into any agreement or contract or employ any employee upon terms and conditions less favorable than those set forth herein. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit the right of any employee to negotiate terms and conditions, including compensation more favorable than that set forth herein.

ARTICLE 24 – SUBORDINATION OF AGREEMENT AND SAVINGS CLAUSE

In the event that any provision of this Agreement is found to be invalid, such invalidity shall not impair the validity and enforceability of the remaining provisions of this Agreement. Upon

request from either party, the Union and Employer negotiating committee shall commence negotiations within (30) days for the purpose of coming to an agreement on a substitute provision for that which was declared unlawful or invalid.

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed to limit or reduce the rights and privileges of the parties except where specifically modified herein.

ARTICLE 25 – SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS

This Agreement shall be binding on all signatories hereto, and their successors and assigns, as required by applicable labor law. The Employer agrees to use its best efforts to have a successor assume this Agreement.

ARTICLE 26 – NO STRIKE/LOCKOUT

- 26.1 The Employer and the Union acknowledge that this Agreement provides, through the grievance procedure and through other administrative remedies, for an orderly settlement of grievances or disputes which may arise between the parties. Therefore, during the life of the Agreement, the Employer shall not lockout any of the employees as a result of a labor dispute or grievance or disputes on personnel matters nor shall the Union condone or authorize a work stoppage, work slowdown, or any other curtailment of work in the bargaining units.
- The Union undertakes to enforce the provisions of this Article and to require compliance therewith on the part of all of its members.
- 26.3 Any action of the Employer in closing during a general strike, riot, or civil disturbance for the protection of the institution, its property, or its employees shall not be deemed a lockout.
- 26.4 Any action of an employee in refusing to cross, for their own personal safety, a picket line at the Employer's premises in case of an officially declared strike by some other employee organization or union representing employees working for the Employer shall not constitute a violation of this clause of the Agreement, provided, however, that such a decision shall be made freely by the employee without coercion by either the Employer or the Union and provided further that nothing herein shall preclude the Employer from continuing to operate with or without temporary replacement personnel.

ARTICLE 27 – NEWSROOM FIREWALL

To maintain the highest level of journalistic integrity and preserve the public's trust in KUOW, the parties agree to deal collegially with any concerns employees may have regarding

KUOW's firewall policy and code of ethics in the labor-management committee on an as-needed basis.

ARTICLE 28 – CORRECTIVE ACTION/DISMISSAL

The parties will follow the "Corrective Action/Dismissal Process" outlined below. No employee shall be subject to the process except for just cause. The corrective action process will be considered to incorporate the concept of progressive action while providing a positive method for improvement rather than punitive action.

28.1 Representation

- A. Employees shall be notified orally or in writing that upon request they shall be entitled to have a representative present when formal counseling, final counseling or dismissal is occurring. Employees have a right to a meeting with management whenever corrective action is issued. Attendance of a representative shall not delay the corrective action process unduly as determined by the Employer. All parties shall make every effort possible to allow for Union representation without unduly delaying the process.
- B. Upon request, an employee has the right to a union representative at an investigatory interview called by the Employer, if the employee reasonably believes corrective action could result. The employer will provide reasonable time to allow an employee to secure a representative.
 The role of the union representative in regard to an Employer-initiated investigation is to provide assistance and counsel to the employee and not interfere with the Employer's right to conduct the investigation. Every effort will be made to cooperate in the investigation.
- C. An employee placed on an alternative assignment during an investigation will not be prohibited from contacting their union steward unless there is a conflict of interest, in which case the employee may contact another union steward. This does not preclude the Employer from restricting an employee's access to the Employer's premises.
- D. An interpreter can be requested by either party and will be provided.
- 28.2 <u>Coaching</u>. Informal discussion or instruction between employee and their immediate supervisor. Supervisor may follow up in writing which may include a simple action plan. This is not a form of corrective action.
- 28.3 <u>Corrective Action/Dismissal Process</u>. The Employer will make clear when formal or final counseling is being conducted and will inform the employee about their right to representation under the CBA. When counseling or dismissing an employee, the

- Employer will make every effort to protect the privacy of the employee. Interpreters may be requested by any party.
- 28.4 <u>Formal Counseling</u>. Formal counseling (may involve administrative personnel other than the employee's immediate supervisor) including the development of a written action plan. The action plan will identify specific problem areas, performance objectives, suggestions for remedying, and a timeframe for improvement. Prior to issuance of formal counseling, a meeting may be scheduled by the employer or requested by the employee to give the employee an opportunity to make their case before the final decision is made. Employee requests for such a meeting will be granted. An employee is entitled to representation at this meeting.
- 28.5 <u>Final Counseling</u>. Final counseling (may involve administrative personnel other than the employee's immediate supervisor) including action plan discussion and revision, where appropriate. A decision-making period of one (1) day of paid time away from the work site for the employee to consider the consequences of failure to follow the action plan may be used at this step. If the Employer decides to provide a decision-making day, the employee will be given a list of expectations and problem statements prior to the day taking place.
- 28.6 <u>Dismissal</u>. Prior to dismissal, a pre-determination meeting will be scheduled to give an employee an opportunity to make their case before the final decision is made. The employee has the right to have a union representative present at the pre-determination meeting. At least five (5) days prior to the meeting, the employee will be informed in writing of the reasons for the contemplated dismissal and given referenced documentation. The employee will be furnished with written notification of the outcome of the pre-determination hearing.
- 28.7 <u>Demotion</u>. Demotion of Leads and/or Supervisors may be initiated by the Employer at any step of the Corrective Action process.
- 28.8 <u>Personnel Files</u>. Upon request, an employee shall be entitled to review their personnel file in the Finance Office. Upon request of an employee, the Employer shall provide to the employee a copy of any performance-related document contained in their personnel file. Should the Employer intend to place a performance-related document or disciplinary memo in an employee's personnel file, notice shall be given to the employee, and the opportunity for a response shall be offered.

ARTICLE 29 – LENGTH OF SERVICE

Length of service is defined as the continuous length of service in a SAG-AFTRA bargaining unit position in calendar days with the Employer from the most recent date of hire. Service of less than full time shall be considered full time. Time spent on layoff shall not be included in computing seniority, but does not constitute a break in service. Permanent employees who are

veterans or their unmarried widows/widowers shall have added to their seniority the veteran's active military service to a maximum of five (5) years credit. Time spent on military duty leave, paid or unpaid, or time spent on unpaid time off to work for the union is included in seniority calculation. Probationary employees are not vested with seniority credits until successfully completing the probationary period.

Length of service is lost upon resignation, termination for cause, or failure to return from a leave of absence.

Employees who enter into the bargaining unit from other positions at the University of Washington shall be credited with their length of service for all employment in State classified and professional staff service while employed at the University. Employees who enter into the bargaining unit from other state agencies and institutions of higher education shall start earning layoff seniority from the first day of coverage under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 30 - LAYOFF

30.1 Layoff.

- A. Whenever it becomes necessary for the Employer to reduce its workforce due to lack of work, lack of funds, or good faith reorganization for efficiency purposes, the Employer shall us the following procedure. The Employer will attempt to notify the Union of impending layoffs ninety (90) calendar days in advance, but no less than thirty (30) calendar days in advance of implementation so that the parties can discuss reasonable alternative proposals can be considered.
- B. The Employer shall not lay off bargaining unit employees in lieu of disciplinary action.
- 30.2 <u>Employment Option.</u> The employee affected by the reduction in force shall be offered the following employment options in descending order, provided that the employee meets the essential skills (defined as the minimum qualifications listed in the job description for the job profile and any specific position requirements or credentialing) of the offered position:
 - A. A funded vacant position within the same job profile and layoff unit.
- 30.3 <u>Notice</u>. The Employer shall identify the positions to be eliminated and the employee(s) to be affected and shall notify employees in these positions, with notice to the union, in as many as ninety (90) in advance, but no less than thirty (30) calendar days in advance of implementation prior to the elimination of the positions, pay the employee in lieu of notice, or combine pay and notice. The notice shall include:
 - A. The effective date of the layoff and a reference to the employee's rights under this Article, and

B. Identification of the employment option being offered, if applicable.

ARTICLE 31 – REHIRE RIGHTS

31.1 Employees who are subject to layoff shall be placed on the Employer's rehire list and the following rights shall inure to their benefit.

The Employer shall make a concerted effort to re-employ bargaining unit members on the rehire list. Bargaining unit members on the rehire list are eligible to take all Professional & Organizational Development (POD) courses on a space available basis upon payment of designated fees. Employees without employment options will be placed on the rehire list(s) designated by the employee for twenty-four (24) months. In addition to the rehire list for the job profiles and FTE status from which the employee was laid off, employees identified for layoff may request placement on the following rehire lists:

- A. For positions of a lower FTE status in the job profile from which the employee was laid off (or equivalent if prior position has been eliminated); and
- B. The Employer will provide a copy of the Rehire List to the Union upon request.
- 31.2. <u>Rehire Trial Period</u>. Employees placed into vacant positions from the rehire list will serve a three (3) month rehire trial period. During the rehire trial period either party may, at its sole discretion and without resort to the grievance procedure, initiate return to the rehire list. Time spent in a rehire trial period will not count toward the twenty-four (24) month rehire list period. The three (3) month rehire trial period will be adjusted to reflect any paid or unpaid leave taken during the period.
- 31.3 <u>Corrective Action</u>. Final Counseling that occurs within the six (6) months prior to the layoff will be considered in effect should the employee be rehired. The employee will continue to be subject to any consequences of not following the directives and/or action plan(s) specified in the current corrective action.
- 31.4 <u>Removal from List</u>. Removal from the rehire list(s) will occur for any of the following circumstances:
 - A. If placement does not occur within twenty-four (24) months,
 - B. If the employee refuses two (2) offers of placement for a position having the same pay, FTE status and shift as the position from which the employee was laid off. In such case, the employee will be removed from all other rehire lists and will have exhausted their rehire rights.
 - C. If the employee was placed into two (2) vacant positions for which the employee has failed to complete the rehire trial period.

- D. If the employee accepts any offer of placement from any rehire list and completes the rehire trial service period for a position with the same FTE status and pay as the position from which the employee was laid off.
- E. Employees who reject two (2) offers of placement from a list for a position of a lower FTE status than that which the employee held immediately prior to layoff will be removed from that list.
- F. Employees who reject one (1) offer of placement from a list for a position in a job profile other than that from which the employee was laid off will be removed from that list.
- 31.5 <u>Salary Setting Upon Rehire</u>. When employees are rehired from layoff status, the annual leave accrual date will be reestablished and extended by an amount of time in calendar days equal to the period of time spent on the rehire list prior to rehire. Employees placed from the rehire list into positions with the same minimum salary held at the time of layoff shall be placed in the position at the salary held at the time of layoff. Employees placed from the rehire list into positions with a lower minimum salary than held at the time of layoff shall be placed at a salary at the time of layoff, but not to exceed 120% of the minimum salary for the position to be filled. Salaries at the time of rehire shall not be lower than the minimum of the job into which they are rehired.
- 31.6 Affirmative action goals may be considered at any point during the layoff or rehire process.

ARTICLE 32 – STATUS NOTIFICATION FORMS

The Station agrees to advise all new employees covered by this Agreement of the union security provision through presenting them a form provided by the Union. Employer shall notify SAG-AFTRA of a new hire and complete a Status Notification Form, attached as Exhibit "B", within ten (10) business days. The Employer shall also timely notify and complete an accurate Status Notification Form with respect to temporary and permanent reclassifications, terminations, discharges, resignations, or transfers out of the bargaining unit no later than fifteen (15) days from such an occurrence.

ARTICLE 33 – POSTINGS

- 33.1 Job postings will identify job title, duties, required qualifications, and the minimum salary assigned to the position.
- 33.2 If the Employer decides not to fill a bargaining unit position, it will notify the Union in writing.
- 33.3 Internal bargaining unit applicants who meet the minimum job requirements as stated in the job posting shall be interviewed for consideration.

- 33.4 If the Employer elects to use an interview panel for hiring any bargaining unit position, at least one (1) SAG-AFTRA represented employee shall be included on such interview panel.
- 33.5 The Employer encourages employees to pursue opportunities for lateral moves or advancement.

ARTICLE 34 – PROBATIONARY PERIOD

- 34.1 Every part-time and full-time employee, will serve a probationary period of six (6) consecutive months.
- 34.2 The Employer will extend an employee's probationary period, on a day-for-a-day basis, for any day(s) that the employee takes paid or unpaid time off, except for absences taken for military service or for purposes of faith or conscience. For the purpose of calculating the completion date, an employee's probationary period shall not end on the employee's regularly scheduled weekend off or a scheduled holiday off. In those instances, the completion date will be the next scheduled work day.
- 34.3 Employees in probationary status will earn seniority from their initial date of hire but may not exercise seniority rights until completion of the probationary period. Probationary employees are not eligible for layoff or rehire rights.
- 34.4 An employee who is appointed to a different position in the bargaining unit prior to completing their initial probationary period will not serve a new probationary period, but will complete their initial six (6) month probationary period.
- 34.5 <u>Probationary Period.</u> An employee who has not completed a probationary period_may be severed from employment, and such separation is not subject to the grievance and arbitration procedures; all other legal rights and remedies shall be retained by Employee. Upon request by the employee and if made within ten (10) business days of notice, a meeting to explain such action shall be held with a representative of the Employer, and a representative of the Union shall attend such meetings.

ARTICLE 35 – UNION REPRESENTATIVES AND STEWARDS

35.1 <u>Union Visitation</u>. Representatives of SAG-AFTRA shall be admitted to the Employer's premises for the purpose of administering and monitoring compliance with this Agreement. The representative shall notify management prior to their arrival and shall not interrupt the normal operations of the Station. There will be no interference with an employee's work assignment. Upon request, the Employer will provide a meeting location for the Union representatives and members to meet.

- A. Within thirty (30) calendar days from the effective date of this Agreement, the Union shall provide the Office of Labor Relations a list of staff representatives and stewards. The Union shall provide written notice to the Employer of any changes within thirty (30) calendar days of the change.
- 35.2 <u>Union Stewards</u>. The union may designate employees who shall be recognized by the Employer as SAG-AFTRA's employee representatives. A shop steward may act as the advocate for a bargaining unit employee in proceedings under the Station's grievance procedure.
- 35.3 <u>Labor/Management Committee</u>. The parties agree to establish a Labor/Management committee consisting of at least two (2) members of the bargaining unit, two (2) representatives of management, and one (1) representative of human resources. This committee shall deal collegially with general concerns that either party may have. Committee meeting topics shall be limited to subjects of groups rather than individual concern, and the committee shall not discuss grievances properly discussed under Article 6 of the Agreement. The Committee's shall not include any collective bargaining authority; however, any agreements reached through this process shall be reduced to writing and supported by the Union and representatives and the Employer.

<u>Meetings.</u> This committee shall meet on an as-needed basis. Committee members shall be given release time for attendance at committee meetings held during working hours.

Agenda items, when possible shall be provided at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting. If the agenda items are not provided at least seven (7) days in advance of the meeting either party may cancel the meeting.

35.4 Quarterly Content Management Meeting. The Employer (Chief Content Officer) will hold a quarterly meeting with employees to review overall strategy, new initiatives, investments, and metrics within the content unit. At least 50% of the meeting time will be allotted for employees to ask questions and give input for consideration. The 3rd quarter meeting (Jan-March window) will be dedicated to soliciting input and ideas for strategic planning consideration for the upcoming year. A KUOW shop steward or designee will summarize feedback and recommendations from the meeting and submit to the Chief Content Officer within 5 days. The Chief Content officer will forward the information to the President & General Manager for consideration. If there is a request by the Union to be included on the board agenda, the Chief Content Officer will submit the request on the Union's behalf in accordance with board policy.

A union representative or designee will be provided release time to attend Board of Directors meetings. No overtime shall be claimed or paid for attending these meetings. Attendance at these meetings is not considered work time, thus, if the meeting occurs outside the employee members' regular work hours, it will be unpaid time. Release time

- is subject to a supervisor's approval and business needs as provided in Section 7 of this Article.
- 35.5 Use of State Facilities, Resources, and Equipment. Upon request of the Union and subject to the University's policy and availability of the space, the Employer shall provide, at no cost, adequate facilities for Union meetings. Such meetings shall be for professional purposes and shall be held during the employees' own free time.
 - A. Email, Fax Machines, and the Internet. Union delegates, and members may utilize state owned/operated equipment to communicate with the Union and/or the Employer only for the exclusive purpose of administration of this Agreement.
- 35.6 Bulletin Board. The Employer will provide a bulletin board in an area bargaining unit employees work or frequent, for the posting of notices and information pertaining to official business of the Union. Materials posted on the Union bulletin board without the signature of a recognized Union officer or representative may be removed.
- 35.7 Release Time. Employer shall grant employees release time, defined as Employer-paid time at an employee's regular rate of pay while performing union duties, following a request to a supervisor, but in consideration of job responsibilities. If permission for time off cannot be immediately granted, the supervisor shall arrange for time off at the earliest possible time thereafter. Union business shall include:
 - A. Grievance processing;
 - B. Contract negotiations;
 - C. Arbitration proceedings
 - D. Labor-Management Committee
- 35.8 No-Union Related Discrimination. The Station agrees not to discriminate against any employee for membership in or any legal activity on behalf of SAG-AFTRA, or by reason of the prosecution of any grievance arising under this Agreement.

ARTICLE 36 – CELL PHONE POLICY

In the interest of all content creators having the necessary equipment to do their work, the operations department will provide cell phones and pay the monthly fee for all content creators within the unit. Phone replacement will be determined by the Employer, and employees may provide input on specifications. Upon request, employees who were last issued a cell phone at least three (3) years ago will be provided with a replacement.

ARTICLE 37 – MEAL POLICY

In the event of breaking news or extended news coverage that prohibits employees from leaving for meals, the employer will provide meals for working staff. The meals are at the employer's discretion but they will make every effort to offer options to accommodate all dietary restrictions. In the event of breaking news or extended news coverage an employee who is working in the field shall be entitled to a reimbursement of no more than twenty dollars (\$20).

ARTICLE 38 – BROADCAST HOST PREMIUM

Regular, full-time employees temporarily assigned to be broadcast hosts shall receive a premium in the amount of three hundred fifty dollars (\$350) for every five (5) working days that they are temporarily assigned as a broadcast host in a fiscal year, payable on the first available pay period, as determined by the Employer, following each fifth working day.

ARTICLE 39 – COMPENSATION

- 39.1 The SAG—AFTRA classifications with their respective pay levels are hereby incorporated into this contract as Appendix I. No employee may be hired below the minimum annual salary of their job profile.
 - A. Effective on June 1, 2023, minimum annual salaries in Appendix I will be increased by nine percent (9%).
 - B. Effective January 1, 2024, minimum annual salaries in Appendix I will be increased by four percent (4%).
 - C. Effective January 1, 2025, minimum annual salaries in Appendix I will be increased by three percent (3%).

39.2

- A. Effective on June 1, 2023, all members of the bargaining unit will receive a three percent (3%) across-the-board increase over their current salary.
- B. Effective January 1, 2024, all members of the bargaining unit will receive a four percent (4%) across-the-board increase over their current salary.
- C. Effective January 1, 2025, all members of the bargaining unit will receive a three percent (3%) across-the-board increase over their current salary.

- 39.3 Upon promotion or reclassification from a SAG-AFTRA position to another SAG-AFTRA position with a higher salary minimum, the affected employee shall receive a salary no less than the minimum of the new job class.
- 39.4 An employee occupying a position that is reclassified to an existing class with a lower salary minimum shall receive a salary no lower than the minimum salary for the class into which the employee is moving and no higher than 120% of the minimum salary.
- 39.5 At management's discretion, salary increases may be made at any time to individuals or to job classes for reasons of market competitiveness, internal equity, increased responsibility or retention. Should additional sources of money become available for supplemental wage increases, the parties will meet to establish an equitable distribution methodology. Requests for salary reviews may be made directly by employees to their supervisors but remain subject to management approval and discretion. Management's decision on such requests shall be final and shall not be grievable.
- 39.6 SAG-AFTRA Bargaining unit members are eligible for "story incentive" pass-through payments under the terms of the KUOW National/International Story Incentive Payment Policy.
- 39.7 Temporary Pay Increase (TPI). An employee who for ten (10) or more consecutive working days is temporarily assigned additional duties by management at the same level or who is assigned additional higher-level responsibilities by management will receive a temporary pay increase of at least five percent (5%) over their current salary. The pay increase will be retroactive to the first day of working the additional duties. Alternatively, the employee can choose to stop assuming those duties, and their TPI will stop.#

ARTICLE 40 – DURATION

This Agreement shall become effective upon ratification, and remain in force through January 31, 2026.

Either party may request negotiation of a successor Agreement by notifying the other party in writing no sooner than one hundred and fifty (150) days prior to the expiration of the collective agreement, and no later than sixty (60) days prior to the expiration of the agreement, to negotiate a new Agreement. Should such notice be served, bargaining shall commence at a time agreed upon by the parties.

ARTICLE 41 – SICK TIME OFF

41.1 Sick Time Off

a. <u>Accrual</u>.

Full-time employees shall accrue eight (8) hours of sick time off for each month of completed service. Paid sick time off may not be used in advance of accrual and must not exceed 8 hours in a month. Employees working less than a full time schedule shall accrue sick time off on the same prorated basis that their employment bears to a full time schedule.

- b. <u>Sick Time Off Use</u>. Sick Time Off shall be allowed an employee under the following conditions.
 - (1) Because of and during any physical or mental illness, disability or injury which has incapacitated the employee from performing required duties.
 - (2) By reason of exposure of the employee to a contagious disease during such period as attendance on duty would jeopardize the health of fellow employees or the public and/or the closure of UW by order of a public official for any health-related reason.
 - (3) Because of a health condition of a family member that requires treatment or supervision, or that requires the presence of the employee to make arrangements for extended care.
 - Family members includes biological, adoptive, de facto, or foster parent, stepparent, or legal guardian of an employee or the employee's spouse or domestic partner, or a person who stood in loco parentis when the employee was a minor child; sibling, spouse, domestic partner, grandparent, grandchild, or child, regardless of age or dependency status, including a biological, adopted or foster child, stepchild, or a child to whom the employee stands in loco parentis, is a legal guardian, or is a de facto parent. Family members include those persons in a "step" relationship.
 - (4) For personal medical, dental, or optical appointments or for family members' appointments when the presence of the employee is required, if arranged in advance with the Employer.
 - (5) When an employee is required to be absent from work to care for members of the employee's household or family members because of emergencies.

- (6) When requested as a supplemental benefit while receiving a partial wage replacement for paid family and/or medical leave under Title <u>50A</u> RCW. This time off may be subject to verification that the employee has been approved to receive benefits for paid family and/or medical leave under Title <u>50A</u> RCW.
- (7) If the employee or the employee's family member is a victim of domestic violence, sexual assault, or stalking as defined in RCW <u>49.76.020</u>. The employer may require the request for leave for this purpose be supported by verification per Administrative Policy Statement 46.8.
- (8) For an employee to be with a spouse or registered domestic partner who is a member of the armed forces of the United States, National Guard, or reserves after the military spouse or registered domestic partner has been notified of an impending call or order to active duty, before deployment, or when the military spouse or registered domestic partner is on leave from deployment.
- (9) When an employee requests to use sick time off for the purposes of parental leave to bond with a newborn, adoptive or foster child for a period of up to eighteen (18) weeks. Sick time off for this purpose must be taken during the first year following the child's birth or placement.
- (10) Sick time off may also be granted for:
 - a. To provide emergency child care (as defined in the Employer's Family Care Emergencies Absence Policy)
 - b. Because of condolence or bereavement (as in Article 20)
 - c. When the employee is unable to report to work due to inclement weather
 - d. To bond with a newborn, adoptive or foster child for a period beyond eighteen (18) weeks. Sick time off for this purpose must be taken during the first year following the child's birth or placement.
- (11) During furlough for benefits maintenance only if the employee has previously exhausted all other paid time off balances.
- c. <u>Use of Vacation Time Off or Compensatory Time Off for Sick Time Off Purposes</u>. An employee who has used all accrued sick time off may be allowed to use accrued vacation time off and/or compensatory time off for sick time off purposes when authorized by HR. All available compensatory time must be used prior to accrued vacation time off, unless this will result in the loss of vacation time.
- d. Restoration of Vacation Time Off. In the event of an incapacitating illness or injury during vacation time off, the employee's supervisor may authorize the use of sick time off and the equivalent restoration of any vacation time off otherwise charged. Such requests shall be in writing, and a medical certificate may be requested.

- e. <u>No Abuse of Sick Time Off</u>. Both parties agree that neither the abuse nor the arbitrary denial of sick time off will be condoned. The Employer and the Union agree to work cooperatively toward the resolution of mutually identified problems regarding the use of sick time off.
- f. <u>Sick Time Off Verification</u>: The Employer will not require verification for absences of three (3) consecutive work days or fewer. Such verification or proof may be given to the supervisor/manager or Human Resources according to departmental policy.
- g. <u>Advance Notice</u>: For foreseeable absences, Employees should provide notice at least ten (10) days in advance of the absence, or as early as practicable to schedule sick time off in advance. If advance notice is not practicable, Employees shall notify the Station as soon as possible in accordance with the Station's call-out procedures.
- 41.2 <u>Sick Time Off Cash Out</u>. Eligible employees may elect to receive monetary compensation for accrued sick time off as follows:

In January of each year an employee whose sick time off balance at the end of the previous year exceeds four hundred eighty (480) hours may elect to convert the sick time off hours earned in the previous calendar year, minus those hours used during the year, to monetary compensation. No sick time off hours may be converted which would reduce the calendar year end balance below four hundred eighty (480) hours. Monetary compensation shall be paid at the rate of twenty-five percent and shall be based on the employee's current salary. All converted hours will be deducted from the sick time off balance.

Employees who separate from University service due to retirement or death shall be compensated for the unused sick time off accumulation from the date of most recent hire in a leave eligible position with the State of Washington at the rate of 25%. Compensation shall be based upon the employee's wage at the time of separation. For the purpose of this section, retirement shall not include vested out of service employees who leave funds on deposit with the retirement system.

In accordance with state law, former eligible employees who are re-employed shall be granted all unused sick time off credits, if any, to which they are entitled at time of separation if they return to state employment within five years of termination.

41.3 Family Care Leave.

In accordance with RCW 49.12 and WAC 296-130, employees shall be allowed to use any or all of their choice of sick time off or other paid time off to care for a family member (as defined above) who has a serious health condition or an emergency condition. Employees shall not be disciplined or otherwise discriminated against because of their exercise of these rights.

ARTICLE 42 – CLASSIFICATION AND RECLASSIFICATION

- 42.1. The Employer will allocate positions on a "best fit" basis to the most appropriate classification at the University of Washington. Allocations shall be based on a position's duties, responsibilities, or qualifications.
- 42.2. Reallocations shall be based on a permanent and substantive change in the duties, responsibilities, or qualifications of a position or application of the professional exemption criteria set forth in RCW 41.06.070(2).
 - a. Should the Employer decide to create, eliminate or modify class specifications which does not involve a major restructure to the overall classification system, it will notify the Union in advance of implementing the action. Notification will include the bargaining unit status of the classification and, for a newly created or modified classification considered to be in the bargaining unit, a proposed salary. Notification will occur at least forty-five (45) days in advance of any proposed implementation date. The Union may bargain over the salary
 - b. All new SAG-AFTRA non-supervisory class specifications will be considered included in the bargaining unit, unless exempted by law. UW HR will follow RCW 41.56.21 to determine whether a new SAG-AFTRA position is prohibited by law from being in the bargaining unit. If a new SAG-AFTRA non-supervisory position is not prohibited from being in the bargaining unit by RCW 41.56.21, it will be considered bargaining unit work. For work that is permitted to be in the bargaining unit, a new bargaining unit class specification may be created or the position may be assigned to an existing bargaining unit job class specification. The Union may bargain over the salary placement.
 - c. Within thirty (30) calendar days following implementation of the Employer's decision to create or combine classifications per this article, or modify class specifications for bargaining unit positions, the Union may file an appeal with the Classification Review Hearing Officer selected under this article of this contract, to determine if the salary assigned to the classification is appropriate.
- 42.3. The Union may, at any time, propose a new classification or edits to an existing classification with appropriate justification. These proposals will be reviewed by the UWHR Compensation Office which will accept, reject, or modify any proposal. The Union and the UWHR Compensation Office will meet and discuss the proposal within sixty (60) days. This review is not grievable.
- 42.4. The Employer agrees to notify the Union of any proposed reclassifications of occupied bargaining unit positions into non-bargaining unit positions at least thirty (30) days prior to implementation.
- 42.5. Position Review Process:

- a. The Employer or employee representative may request that a position be reviewed when the requesting party believes that the basis of its request has become a permanent requirement of the position. Employees and employee representatives may not request that a position be reviewed more often than once every six (6) months.
- b. The request must be complete and in writing on forms provided by the Employer. Requests may be submitted to KUOW Human Resources.
- c. The UWHR Compensation Office will investigate the position and issue a written response to the employee or employee representative within sixty (60) calendar days from receipt, by Human Resources, of the completed request. The response will include notification of the class and salary assigned when the position is reallocated, or notification of the reasons the position does not warrant reallocation when the request is not approved.
- d. The effective date of allocations or reallocations initiated by the Employer shall be determined by the Employer. The effective date of a reallocation resulting from an employee representative request for position review will be established as the 1st or the 16th of the month which precedes the date that the completed request was filed with KUOW Human Resources or the employee's direct supervisor or department, whichever date is earliest. The date of receipt must be appropriately documented.

42.6. Position Review Appeal Process. If the Union wishes to appeal the decision of the Employer, it may appeal to the Classification Review Hearing Officer within thirty (30) calendar days following the date of the Employer's written response.

Hearing Officer. The Hearing Officer shall be jointly selected by the parties within thirty (30) days of the execution of this contract and shall serve for a minimum of one (1) year from the date of selection. At that time the parties may choose to re-appoint the Hearing Officer or select a different Hearing Officer who will also serve for a minimum of one (1) year from date of selection.

Hearings. The Hearing Officer shall hold hearings on a quarterly basis unless there are no appeals to hear or the parties agree to pend any open appeals. All materials considered in the position review shall be submitted to the Hearing Officer prior to the hearing and neither party will submit evidence at the hearing that was not submitted during the position review. The Hearing Officer shall endeavor to hold multiple hearings each day, and shall issue a concise decision which shall be final and binding. The Hearing Officer shall have no authority to alter the terms and conditions of this contract. Employees may be represented at the hearing and will be released from work with no loss of pay to attend the hearing. The Hearing Officer's fees and expenses shall be shared equally by the parties.

ARTICLE 43 – SALARY OVERPAYMENT RECOVERY

Salary Overpayment Recovery

- A. When an Employer has determined that an employee has been overpaid wages, the Employer may recoup the overpayment. The Employer will provide written notice to the employee that will include the following items:
 - 1. The amount of the overpayment,
 - 2. The basis for the claim,
 - 3. A demand for payment, and
 - 4. The rights of the employee under the terms of this Agreement.

Employees may request a meeting with the Employer and an interpreter to have the overpayment notification explained.

- B. Method of Payback
 - 1. The employee must choose one (1) of the following options for paying back the overpayment:
 - a. Voluntary wage deduction,
 - b. Cash, or
 - c. Check
 - d. Vacation (if under 240 hours only) or Compensatory time balances if appropriate and with prior approval from ISC Payroll
 - 2. The employee may propose a payment schedule to repay the overpayment to the Employer. If the employee's proposal is accepted by the Employer, the deductions shall continue until the overpayment is fully recouped. Nothing in the section prevents the Employer and employee from agreeing to a different overpayment amount than specified in the overpayment notice or to a method other than a deduction from wages for repayment of the overpayment amount.
 - 3. If the employee fails to choose one (1) of the four (4) options described above, within twenty (20) days of written notice of overpayment, the Employer will deduct the overpayment owed from the employee's wages or the amount due may be placed with a collection agency. This overpayment recovery will not be more than five percent (5%) of the employee's disposable earnings in a pay period. Disposable earnings will be calculated in accordance with the Attorney General of Washington's guidelines for Wage Assignments.
 - 4. Any overpayment amount still outstanding at separation of employment will be deducted from their final pay.
- C. Neither A nor B above are required for employee reported overpayments and/or employee corrected time including leave submittal corrections. All employee initiated overpayment corrections may be collected from the next available pay check.

- D. Appeal Rights: Any dispute concerning the occurrence or amount of the overpayment will be resolved through the grievance procedure in Article 6 of this Agreement. The Employer will suspend attempts to collect an alleged overpayment until the grievance process has concluded.
- E. Employees who have separated from the University or are on long-term leave must repay the University by check, which requires the ISC Payroll team to calculate the total amount owed. An overpayment cannot be considered paid in full unless it is for the amount that has been calculated by the ISC

APPENDIX I – JOB CLASSIFICATIONS

Job Profile	Job Code	Minimum (Annual) as of June 1, 2023	Minimum (Annual) as of January 1, 2024	Minimum (Annual) as of January 1,2025
Producer/Announcer (NE S SAG- AFTRA)	19900	\$63,324	\$65,857	\$67,833
Producer 1 – Radioactive (NE S SAG-AFTRA)	19901	\$63,324	\$65,857	\$67,833
Producer 2 – News (NE S SAG-AFTRA)	19902	\$66,600	\$69,264	\$71,342
Producer 2 – Podcast (NE S SAG- AFTRA)	19903	\$66,600	\$69,264	\$71,342
Producer 2 – Radioactive (NE S SAG-AFTRA)	19904	\$66,600	\$69,264	\$71,342
Producer 2 - Social Media (NE S SAG- AFTRA)	19905	\$66,600	\$69,264	\$71,342
Producer 2 - Talk Show (NE S SAG- AFTRA)	19906	\$66,600	\$69,264	\$71,342
Producer 3 - Community Engagement (NE S SAG-AFTRA)	19907	\$72,059	\$74,941	\$77,189
Producer 3 – Podcast (NE S SAG- AFTRA)	19908	\$72,059	\$74,941	\$77,189
Producer 3 - Talk Show (NE S SAG- AFTRA)	19909	\$72,059	\$74,941	\$77,189
Producer 4 – Drivetime (NE S SAG- AFTRA)	19910	\$78,610	\$81,754	\$84,207
Newscaster/Reporter (NE S SAG- AFTRA)	19920	\$78,610	\$81,754	\$84,207
Reporter 1 (NE S SAG-AFTRA)	19921	\$72,059	\$74,941	\$77,189
Reporter 2 (NE S SAG-AFTRA)	19922	\$78,610	\$81,754	\$84,207
Board Operator (NE S SAG-AFTRA)	19930	\$63,324	\$65,857	\$67,833
Announcer (NE S SAG-AFTRA)	19940	\$66,600	\$69,264	\$71,342
Web Producer (NE S SAG-AFTRA)	19950	\$66,600	\$69,264	\$71,342
Online Editor/Reporter (NE S SAG- AFTRA)	19960	\$76,426	\$79,483	\$81,867
Show Host (E S SAG-AFTRA)	11242	\$98,262	\$102,192	\$105,258
News Host (E S SAG-AFTRA)	11244	\$98,262	\$102,192	\$105,258
Producer/Host - Community Engagement (E S SAG-AFTRA)	11261	\$98,262	\$102,192	\$105,258
Production Engineer (NE S SAG- AFTRA)	19970	\$57,085	\$59,368	\$61,149

Overtime Status Key NE=Non-exempt

E=Exempt

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON (UNIVERSITY) AND SCREEN ACTORS GUILD – AMERICAN FEDERATION OF TELEVISION AND RADIO ARTISTS

MOU – SEATTLE LOCALITY PREMIUM

In the event that the University of Washington agrees to accept monies funded by the State to provide a Seattle locality premium for represented employees, during the term of the agreement, then the Union may file a demand to bargain over such premium.

This MOU will expire on June 30, 2025.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON (UNIVERSITY) AND SCREEN ACTORS GUILD – AMERICAN FEDERATION OF TELEVISION AND RADIO ARTISTS

MOU – JOB CLASS SPECIFICATION REVIEW

The parties share a mutual interest in assuring a timely assessment of the Union's proposed new job class specifications listed below. The parties agree to work collaboratively to evaluate the list to see which (if any) may be appropriate and add value to be utilized at KUOW. The parties acknowledge that this process may lead to UW Compensation considering whether to update existing classification specifications or create new ones in accordance with Article XX Classification/Reclassification. The parties will meet at least quarterly for the next twelve months to discuss the proposed job class specification titles listed below. The first meeting will be within sixty (60) days post ratification.

Producer 3 – News

Producer 3 – Radioactive

Producer 3 – Social Media

Producer 4 – Community Engagement

Producer 4 – Podcast

Producer 4 – Talk Show

Reporter 3

Announcer 2

Web Producer 2

This MOU expires after the meetings described above have been held or the expiration of the collective bargaining agreement, whichever is sooner.

MEMORANDUM OF UNDERSTANDING BETWEEN THE UNIVERSITY OF WASHINGTON (UNIVERSITY) AND

SCREEN ACTORS GUILD – AMERICAN FEDERATION OF TELEVISION AND RADIO ARTISTS

MOU – LUMP SUM PAYMENT

During negotiations for a successor agreement, the parties reached agreement on the following lump sum payments, if the agreement is ratified on or before May 31, 2023:

- I. Employees in an active position with a UW compensation plan, and with an FTE on June 15, 2023, are eligible for the lump sum as defined below:
 - a. Only bargaining unit employees in the following job classifications will receive a single one (1)-time lump sum payment of twenty-five hundred dollars (\$2500).
 - i. Production Engineer
 - ii. Producer/Announcer
 - iii. Producer 1 Radioactive
 - iv. Board Operator
 - v. Producer 2 News
 - vi. Producer 2 Podcast
 - vii. Producer 2 Radioactive
 - viii. Producer 2 Social Media
 - ix. Producer 2 Talk Show
 - x. Announcer
 - xi. Web Producer
 - b. All other bargaining unit employees not listed above will receive a single one (1)-time lump sum payment of two thousand dollars (\$2000).
- II. The payment will be paid on September 25, 2023.
- III. In order to receive the lump sum payment, the employee must have an active position in Workday on the last day of the pay period in which the lump sum payment is distributed. For example, if the lump sum is paid on 10th of the month, the employee must be in an active position on the last day previous month. If the lump sum is paid on 25th of the month, the employee must have an active position on the 15th of the month.
- IV. This MOU will expire upon implementation.

SIDE LETTER A – U-PASS

July 1, 2022

The parties agree to the following regarding U-PASS:

Bargaining unit employees with an active permanent appointment will not be charged a fee for a U-PASS.

SIGNATORIES

The parties,	, by their	signatures	below, acc	ept and	agree to t	the terms	and con	ditions o	f this co	llective
bargaining a	agreemer	nt.								

6/13/2023 Executed day of, 2023	
SAG-AFTRA:	University of Washington:
DocuSigned by: 12/2023 49EC6A4008B64CC Davis Powell Local Executive Director	Mindy K. Landburg23 BA3D44608ABD472 Mindy Kornberg, J.D. Vice President for Human Resources
DocuSigned by: Mary Cavallar 7/2023 A89AA6773B074DA	DocuSigned by: USULE Hootuk/2023 A71188E27298445
Mary Cavallaro Chief Broadcast Officer	Ashlee Hooten Labor Relations Negotiator
	Approved as to form:
	Docusigned by: Megan Globol 13/2023 9409141BFDAB42B
	Assistant Attorney General State of Washington